


































SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-008 
 

REDUCTION AND ELIMINATION OF PARTICULAR KINDS OF SERVICE 
2014-2015 CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES 

 
WHEREAS, due to State and Federal budgetary shortfalls and cutbacks, declining enrollment 
and expirations in program funding, the Sierra County Superintendent of Schools finds it 
necessary to reduce up to the number of certain Classified positions as set forth below; 
 
WHEREAS, due to the need to reduce such positions and the resulting lack of funds and/or 
work, the County Superintendent of Schools  hereby finds it is in the best interest of the 
Sierra County Office of Education that as of June 30, 2014, certain positions with the Sierra 
County Office of Education will be reduced: 
 

                 Custodian, reduction of .25 F.T.E. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that no less than sixty (60) days after notice is given to 
affected employees, .25 FTE Classified position of the Sierra-County Office of Education will be 
reduced. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sierra County Superintendent will give notices of 
reduction of employment to the Classifed employees of Sierra County Office of Education 
pursuant to the County office of education rules and regulations and applicable provisions of 
date of layoff as set forth above. 
 
 
Signed and approved by me after its passage. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________               Dated: ____________ 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed. D. 
County Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through March

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 160,144.00 174,232.00 44,252.28 121,686.54 8,293.18 Teachers Salaries

1120 4,833.00 7,705.00 10,023.50 2,318.50-Certificated Substitutes

1200 58,392.00 61,020.00 18,305.91 42,713.79 .30 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 65,192.00 89,284.00 23,230.23 66,054.32 .55-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 288,561.00 332,241.00 85,788.42 240,478.15 5,974.43 

2100 107,184.00 91,495.00 29,208.20 68,071.07 5,784.27-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 13,238.00 13,850.00 3,915.77 10,764.78 830.55-Classified Support Salaries

2300 90,812.00 95,843.00 23,490.00 70,755.00 1,598.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 113,140.00 122,601.00 31,033.03 91,311.59 256.38 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,144.00 4,000.00 6,218.00 2,218.00-Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 330,518.00 327,789.00 87,647.00 247,120.44 6,978.44-

3101 22,319.00 26,608.00 7,077.48 19,120.45 410.07 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 433.00 104.49 332.70 4.19-STRS Classified Positions

3201 302.00 392.85 90.85-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 52,074.00 47,907.00 12,433.20 35,713.20 239.40-PERS Classified Positions

3301 1,118.00 271.16 271.16-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,869.00 19,419.00 5,192.34 14,635.01 408.35-OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,482.00 5,093.00 1,214.91 3,596.71 281.38 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,653.00 4,616.00 1,231.85 3,483.62 99.47-Medicare Classified Positions

3401 70,692.00 77,406.00 22,503.84 54,899.92 2.24 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 84,530.00 79,608.00 19,603.14 57,719.29 2,285.57 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 1,358.00 180.00 42.93 126.85 10.22 SUI Certificated

3502 165.00 165.00 43.89 120.56 .55 SUI Classified

3601 8,916.00 10,074.00 2,494.71 6,999.75 579.54 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,239.00 9,480.00 2,529.50 7,153.43 202.93-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3701 27,730.00 .00 OPEB, Allocated Certificated

3901 26,768.00 12,958.44 13,809.56 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 308,145.00 308,059.00 74,472.28 217,523.94 16,062.78 

4100 400.00 400.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 6,613.00 1,582.00 1,297.20 284.80 Library and Reference Material

4300 18,975.00 16,892.00 2,437.09 6,343.48 8,111.43 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 1,300.00 570.45 729.55 Custodial Supplies

4330 2,000.00 2,000.00 898.14 1,101.86 Office Supplies

4340 206.89- 206.89 COUNTY OFFICE MOVING EXP

4350 6,500.00 6,500.00 1,688.55 1,488.12 3,323.33 Vehicle Upkeep

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 9, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Apr  1 2014  3:05PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4340
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through March

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4400 900.00 3,242.25 12,752.77 15,095.02-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 35,388.00 29,574.00 7,367.89 23,143.27 937.16-

5100 33,544.00 33,544.00 35,120.00 1,576.00-Subagreements for Services

5200 23,985.00 15,708.00 4,547.14 12,256.78 1,095.92-Travel and Conference

5300 17,470.00 49,570.00 40,202.83 9,367.17 Dues and Membership

5400 10,200.00 10,450.00 10,149.00 301.00 Insurance

5500 8,000.00 8,000.00 575.17 7,967.72 542.89-Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,700.00 2,200.00 205.70 1,389.31 604.99 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 9,000.00 8,400.00 1,200.00 8,000.00 800.00-Professional Consulting

5801 29,205.00 25,205.00 500.00 24,705.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 200.00 40.00- 340.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 593.00 258.00 113.00 222.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 244.90 955.10 300.00 Other Services & Fees

5810 195,310.00 303,399.00 80,113.00 111,517.72 111,768.28 Contracted Services

5899 2,064.46 427.93 2,492.39-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 2,000.00 2,000.00 642.74 1,357.26 Communications

Total for Object 5000 336,007.00 463,069.00 89,908.37 228,702.13 144,458.50 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 28,525.00 18,581.87 9,943.13 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 .00 58,557.00 .00 18,581.87 39,975.13 

7110 143,407.00 143,500.00 143,442.44 13,894.10- 13,951.66 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 213,187.00 17,750.00 8,148.92 10,314.02 712.94-Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7281 100,000.00 100,000.00 All Other Transfers to Distric

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 356,594.00 261,250.00 151,591.36 3,580.08- 113,238.72 

1,655,213.00 1,780,539.00 496,775.32 971,969.72 311,793.96 Total for Expense accounts

311,793.96 1,655,213.00 1,780,539.00 496,775.32 971,969.72 Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 9, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Apr  1 2014  3:05PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7281
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=67202&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310


SCOE
Minutes

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

March 11, 2014
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118, California

5 pm for Closed Session
This meeting was videoconferenced to Downieville, CA.

A.  CALL TO ORDER

Vice President SHARON DRYDEN called the meeting to order at 5:05 pm.

B.  ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President
Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk
Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member
Mr.  Mike Moore, Member

ABSENT: Mr. Allen Wright, President

VACANT: None

C. FLAG SALUTE

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
DRYDEN/HALL
AYE:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE         NO:  0          ABSENT: WRIGHT

E. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION

At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session items. There
were no comments.

F. CLOSED SESSION – 5:07 pm.

The Board of Trustees and Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant moved into Closed Session to discuss the
following item:

1. Government Code § 54957, Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release

G. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

REPORT OUT

ADJOURN TO SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD
MEETING, CLOSED SESSION, at 5:20 pm.

RECONVENE at 6:03 pm



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 11, 2014

SCOE
Minutes

2

H.  INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

a. Presentation by Mayor Brooks Mitchell regarding the use of the former Loyalton
Middle School as a new location for the City of Loyalton Museum.  He requested that
the Board donate the property to the City. The Board responded by determining to
research the value of the existing building and adjacent lots, evaluating costs already
incurred to have lines designated and lot lines laid out.  Mayor Mitchell proposed
working out an agreement with compensation for water and sewage.

b. The Superintendent reported on his recommendations to reduce Particular Kinds of
Service for 2014-2015 school year per Resolution No. 13-006 and Resolution No. 13-
007 as follows:

Classroom Teacher .6 F.T.E.
SELPA Director .6 F.T.E.

These recommendations were necessary in order to redefine administration all
facilities for the 2014-2015 year.

2. BUSINESS REPORT

a. Ms. Asquith presented the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 2/28/14
There were no questions.

b. Letter from California Department of Education, 2013-14 First Interim Reports,
Positive Certification

3. STAFF REPORT
Marlene Mongolo reviewed the Smarter Balanced testing procedure.

4. SPTA REPORT
There was no report.

5. BOARD MEMBER’S REPORT
There was no report.

6. PUBLIC COMMENT

President WRIGHT opened the meeting for public comment at 6:30 pm.
There was no comment from the teleconferenced location.
President WRIGHT closed the meeting for public comment at 6:30 pm.

I.  CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were included in the consent calendar:

1.  Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held February 11, 2014
2.  Approval of bill warrants for month of February 2014
MOORE/DRISCOLL
AYE:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE         NO:  0          ABSENT: WRIGHT



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 11, 2014

SCOE
Minutes

3

J.  ACTION ITEMS

1. NEW BUSINESS

1314-96 Adoption of Revised 2013-14 Board of Education Meeting Calendar (changes for July and
November meetings)
MOORE/HALL
AYE:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE         NO:  0          ABSENT: WRIGHT

1314-97 Adoption 2013-2014 Second Interim, Actuals as of January 31, 2014(Asquith)
DRISCOLL moved to adopt the 2013 2013-2014 Second Interim, Actuals as of January 31,
2014. MOORE seconded.
AYE:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE         NO:  0          ABSENT: WRIGHT

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS

MOORE motioned to adopt Items 1314-98 through 1314-105 and 106 & 107.
HALL seconded.
AYE:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE         NO:  0          ABSENT: WRIGHT

1314-98 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5123, Promotion/
Acceleration/Retention, revision

1314-99 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation, 5141.21, Administering Medication
and Monitoring Health Conditions, revision

1314-100 Approval of Board Policy, 5145.3, Nondiscrimination/Harassment, revision

1314-101 Approval of Board Policy 5146, Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students, revision

1314-102 Approval to DELETE Administrative Regulation 5146, Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students,
revision

1314-103 Approval to DELETE Board Policy 5148, Child Care and Development, revision

1314-104 Approval of Board Policy 6142.91, Reading/Language Arts Instruction, revision

1314-105 Approval to DELETE Administrative Regulation 6142.91, Reading/Language Arts
Instruction, revision

1314-106 Approval of Board Policy 6146.1, High School Graduation Requirements, revision1314-106
This item was pulled from the agenda

1314-107 Approval of Administrative Regulation 6159.4, Behavioral Interventions for Special
Education Students, revision

1314-108 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6162.51, State Academic
Achievement Tests, revision



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 11, 2014

SCOE
Minutes

4

H.  ADVANCED PLANNING

Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on April 8, 2014, at Downieville School, Downieville, CA,
beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm

Suggested Agenda Items

There were no suggested agenda items.

I. ADJOURNMENT

Adjourned at 6:45pm.
MOORE/DRISCOLL
AYE:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE         NO:  0          ABSENT: WRIGHT

__________________________ _______________________________
Patty Hall, Clerk Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 03/01/2014 through 03/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

CDE                           CASHIER'S OFFICE 01-859003/05/201400013906 137.80 

01-9590 14,012.80 13,875.00 

BARBARA JAQUEZ 01-520003/05/201400013907 170.84 

LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-550003/05/201400013908 192.44 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510003/05/201400013909 1,280.00 

01-5810 1,600.00 320.00 

MARLENE MONGOLO 01-520003/05/201400013910 161.72 

SCHOOL SERV OF CALIFORNIA INC 01-520003/05/201400013911 350.00 

VOYAGER 01-435003/05/201400013912 516.44 

01-5899 783.21 266.77 

ROSE ASQUITH 01-520003/19/201400013913 53.72 

01-5899 214.88 161.16 

HEIDI BETHKE 01-520003/19/201400013914 98.75 

CONTEMPORY FORUMS 01-520003/19/201400013915 445.00 

EMBASSY SUITES 01-520003/19/201400013916 389.50 

MCGRAW - HILL SCH ED LLC 01-430003/19/201400013917 458.03 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510003/19/201400013918 2,522.00 

01-5810 3,200.00 678.00 

MARLENE MONGOLO 01-520003/19/201400013919 49.00 

NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS     

AUTHORITY

76-957103/19/201400013920 4,652.25 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580803/19/201400013921 238.29 

SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH          DEPARTMENT 01-580503/19/201400013922 12.00 

WASHOE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 01-950003/19/201400013923 119,459.00 

WORKABILITY REGION 4          SHAWNA 

PACHECO

01-520003/19/201400013924 100.00 

146,587.71 Total Number of Checks 19 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 18 141,935.46 01

Payroll Clearing 1 4,652.25 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 146,587.71 

.00 

146,587.71 

19 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Apr  1 2014  3:06PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 

High School Graduation Requirements 
 

BP 6146.1  

Instruction 
 

Cautionary Notice:  As added and amended by SBX3 4 (Ch. 12, Third Extraordinary Session, 

Statutes of 2009), ABX4 2 (Ch. 2, Fourth Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009), and SB 70 

(Ch. 7, Statutes of 2011), Education Code 42605 grants districts flexibility in "Tier 3" categorical 

programs. The Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District/Sierra COE has accepted this 

flexibility and thus is deemed in compliance with the statutory or regulatory program and 

funding requirements for these programs for the 2008-09 through 2014-15 fiscal years.  As a 

result, the district may temporarily suspend certain provisions of the following policy or 

regulation that reflect these requirements.  For further information, please contact the 

Superintendent or designee. 

 

The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to obtain a high school diploma to enable 

them to take advantage of opportunities for postsecondary education and employment. 

 

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 

 

Course Requirements 

 

To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete at least the following courses in grades 

9-12, with each course being one year unless otherwise specified: 

 

1. Four courses in English  (Education Code 51225.3) 

 

(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 

 

2. Three courses in mathematics (Education Code 51225.3) 

 

 Beginning in the 2011-12 school year, all high school students beginning in the ninth 

grade will take three consecutive years of math classes. At least one mathematics course shall 

meet or exceed state academic content standards for Algebra I.  (Education Code 51224.5) 

 

 Completion, prior to grade 9, of algebra coursework that meets or exceeds state academic 

content standards shall not exempt a student from the requirement to complete three mathematics 

courses in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 51224.5) 



2 

 

 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 

 

3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences  (Education Code 

51225.3) 

 

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 

 

4. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world 

history, culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics; and 

a one-semester course in economics  (Education Code 51225.3) 

 

(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 

(cf. 6142.93 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 

5. One course in visual or performing arts, foreign language, including American Sign 

Language, or career technical education (Education Code 51225.3) 

 

(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 

(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education) 

(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 

6. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted 

pursuant to other sections of the Education Code  (Education Code 51225.3) 

 

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 

7. One course in state requirements 

 

8. Completion, in grade 12 or academic equivalent, one senior project, the requirements of 

which are determined and outlined by the high school faculty and administration, to include a 

research paper, project activity and formal presentation. 

 

With the inception of an eight period block schedule, the unit requirements are: 

 

* Class of 2012 - 270 Credits 

 

* Class of 2013 - 285 Credits 

 

* Class of 2014 - 300 Credits 

 

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 

 



3 

 

Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the 

Board shall provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance 

with law. 

 

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 

(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall exempt or waive specific course requirements for foster 

youth or children of military families in accordance with Education Code 51225.3 and 49701. 

 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

(cf. 6173.2 - Education for Children of Military Families) 

 

High School Exit Examination 

 

As a condition of high school graduation, each student completing grade 12 shall have 

successfully passed the state exit examination in language arts and mathematics unless he/she 

receives a waiver or exemption. (Education Code 60851, 60859) 

 

(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities) 

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 

 

Supplemental instruction shall be offered to any student in grade 7-12 who does not demonstrate 

"sufficient progress," as defined in BP 6179 - Supplemental Instruction, toward passing the exit 

exam. (Education Code 37252, 60851) 

 

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 

 (cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 

(cf. 6177 - Summer School) 

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

 

Students who have not passed all state and local graduation requirements except one or both 

parts of the exit exam by the end of grade 12 shall be informed of educational options available 

within the district and/or the community to enable them to continue their progress toward a high 

school diploma or the equivalent of a diploma. have the opportunity to receive intensive 

instruction and services for up to two consecutive academic years after completion of grade 12 or 

until they have passed both parts of the exam, whichever comes first.  (Education Code 37254) 

 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

In addition to intensive remedial instruction, the district shall offer students who have passed all 

state and local graduation requirements except one or both parts of the exit exam the following 

LCFF 

Changes 

 



4 

 

options for two years beyond their regular senior year or until they pass the exam, whichever 

occurs first: 

1. If space is available, enrollment for an additional year at a comprehensive high school if 

the student has been continuously enrolled, 

2. Enrollment in an alternative education program, 

3. Reclassification as a junior, 

4. Maintaining continuous enrollment in an independent study program or charter school, 

(cf. 0420.4 - Charter Schools) 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the number of 

students who have fulfilled all local and state graduation requirements except for the passage of 

the exit exam and the resources that have been offered to such students. 

 

Certificates of Completion 

 

Students who have passed all the district's course requirements by the end of their senior year but 

are unable to pass the high school exit exam shall receive a certificate of completion. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the number of 

students receiving a certificate of completion and the resources that have been offered to such 

students. 

 

Retroactive Diplomas 

 

The district may retroactively grant a high school diploma to a former student who was interned 

by order of the federal government during World War II or who is an honorably discharged 

veteran of World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that he/she was 

enrolled in a district school immediately preceding the internment or military service and he/she 

did not receive a diploma because his/her education was interrupted due to the internment or 

military service. (Education Code 51430) 

 

The district also may retroactively grant a diploma to a deceased former student who satisfies the 

above conditions.  The diploma shall be received by the deceased student's next of kin.  

(Education Code 51430) 

 

In addition, the district may grant a diploma to a veteran who entered the military service of the 

United States while he/she was a district student in grade 12 and who had completed the first half 

of the work required for grade 12.  (Education Code 51440) 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

35186  Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

37252  Supplemental instructional programs 

37254  Supplemental instruction based on failure to pass exit exam by end of grade 12 



5 

 

37254.1  Required student participation in supplemental instruction 

47612  Enrollment in charter school 

48200  Compulsory attendance 

48412  Certificate of proficiency 

48430  Continuation education schools and classes 

48645.5  Acceptance of coursework 

48980  Required notification at beginning of term 

49701  Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children 

51224  Skills and knowledge required for adult life 

51224.5  Algebra instruction 

51225.3  Requirements for graduation 

51225.5  Honorary diplomas; foreign exchange students 

51228  Graduation requirements 

51240-51246  Exemptions from requirements 

51250-51251  Assistance to military dependents 

51410-51412  Diplomas 

51420-51427  High school equivalency certificates 

51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 

51745  Independent study restrictions 

52378  Supplemental school counseling program 

56390-56392  Recognition for educational achievement, special education 

60850-60859  High school exit examination 

66204  Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

1600-1651  Graduation of students from grade 12 and credit toward graduation 

COURT DECISIONS 

O'Connell v. Superior Court (Valenzuela), (2006) 141 Cal.App.4th 1452 

 

Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, High School: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/hs 

University of California, List of Approved a-g Courses: 

http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/admissions/freshman/requirements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Regulation              SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

approved:  April 10, 2007        Sierraville, California 

revised:     September 14, 2010 

revised:     April 12, 2011 

revised:     May 8, 2012 

revised:     April 8, 2014            Loyalton, California 



 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2014 – 2015 Proposed School Calendar 

 
Month 

 
Sun 

 
Mon 

 
Tue 

 
Wed 

 
Thu 

 
Fri 

 
Sat 

 
Special Days 

Teacher 
Days 

School 
Days 

AUG 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  

7 

19 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21-22 Staff Development 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 25 First Day of School 

SEP 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 Labor Day Holiday 

21 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13  

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 19 End of 1
st

 Month 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 26 Min. Day – PLC  

20 

28 29 30      

OCT 

      1 2 3 4  

23 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 10 Min. Day – PLC  

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 17 End of 2
nd

 Month 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25  

19 

26 27 28 29 30 31 1 30-31 Min. Day – End of 1
st

 Quarter 

NOV 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8  

17 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 11 Veteran’s Day Holiday 14 End of 3
rd

 Month 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 Min. Day – PLC  

18 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 26 Min. Day 27-28 Thanksgiving Holiday 

DEC 

30 1 2 3 4 5 6  

15 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 12 End of 4
th

 Month 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 19 Min. Day 

19 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 22-2 Winter Break 

28 29 30 31     

JAN 

    1 2 3  

19 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10  

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 Min. Day – End of 2
nd

 Quarter 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 19 Martin Luther King Holiday 23 End of 5
th

 Month 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 30 Min. Day – PLC  

18 
FEB 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7  

18 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 9 Lincoln’s Birthday Holiday 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 16 President’s Day Holiday 20 End of 6
th

 Month 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 27 Min. Day – PLC  

20 MAR 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7  

22 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14  

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 20 Min. Day – PLC  20 End of 7
th

 Month 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28  

14 

29 30 31      

APR 

   1 2 3 4 3 Snow Day 

16 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 6-10 Spring Break 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 17 Min. Day – PLC  17 End of 8
th

 Month 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25  

20 

26 27 28 29 30    

MAY 

     1 2  

19 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 Min. Day – PLC  15 End of 9
th

 Month 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 Snow Day 

13 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 25 Memorial Day Holiday 

JUN 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6 5 Last Day of School (Min. Day) 

5 7 8 9 10 11 12 13  

14 15 16 17 18 19 20  

182 180  Total Required Days 

 






















































	1_SCOE_4_08_14_AGENDA.pdf
	2_WASC.pdf
	3_13-008 Classifed Reduction 2014-15.pdf
	4_scoeobjmar14.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	5_3-11-14 SCOE MINUTES.pdf
	6_scoechecks14.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	



	7_BP6146.1 HS GRAD.pdf
	8_CALENDAR PROPOSED  2014-2015 DRAFT 1.pdf
	9_Policies_4_08_14.pdf

